
Chief Executive’s Office 
Chief Executive:  N.M. Pringle 

To:  All Members of Cabinet: 
 R.J. Phillips (Leader)
 G.V. Hyde (Deputy Leader)
 Mrs. L.O. Barnett
 P.J. Edwards
 Mrs. J.P. French
 J.C. Mayson
 D.W. Rule MBE
 R.V. Stockton
 D.B. Wilcox
 R.M. Wilson 

Your Ref:  

Our Ref: 

Please ask for: 

Direct Line/Extension: 

Fax: 

E-mail: 

 

NMP/CD 

Mr. N.M. Pringle 

(01432) 260044 

(01432) 340189 

npringle@herefordshire.gov.uk 

5th May, 2004 

Dear Councillor, 
 
MEETING OF CABINET 
THURSDAY, 13TH MAY, 2004 AT 2.15 P.M. 
COUNCIL CHAMBER, BROCKINGTON, 35 HAFOD ROAD, HEREFORD 
 

AGENDA (03/29) 
 
 
  
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
  
 To receive any apologies for absence.   
  
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
  
 To receive any declarations of interest by members in respect of items on this agenda.   
  
3. LOCAL GOVERNMENT FINANCE ACT 1992   
  
 
 To consider the notice received from the Office of the Deputy Prime Minister (ODPM) on 

Thursday, 29th April, 2004 advising the Council that it was to be designated. 
 
The amount which the First Secretary of State proposed should be the maximum for the 
amount calculated by Herefordshire District Council as its budget requirement for the financial 
year 2004/05 is £175,320,000.  This contrasts with the budget requirement resolved by the 
full Council at its meeting on 5th March, 2004 of £175,573,000. 
 
The authority has 21 days from the receipt of the letter to determine whether it wishes to 
challenge the designation.   

 
The tight time scales have not enabled the Chief Executive and County Treasurer to prepare 
a full draft paper and further meetings are being held with the Local Government Association 
today.  A draft paper will be prepared for despatch following the issue of this agenda.  Every 
attempt will be made to circulate the draft early next week.  (Pages 1 - 6) 

. 



  
  
Yours sincerely,  
 

 
N.M. PRINGLE 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
 
 
 
Copies to: Chairman of the Council 

Chairman of Strategic Monitoring Committee 
Vice-Chairman of Strategic Monitoring Committee 
Chairmen of Scrutiny Committees 
Group Leaders 
Directors 
County Secretary and Solicitor 
County Treasurer 

 



E:\MODERNGOV\Data\AgendaItemDocs\6\9\5\AI00003596\PUBLINFcabinetcdbus750.doc07/05/04 

The Public's Rights to Information and Attendance at 
Meetings  
 
 
YOU HAVE A RIGHT TO:- 
 
• Attend all Council, Cabinet, Committee and Sub-Committee meetings 

unless the business to be transacted would disclose ‘confidential’ or 
‘exempt' information. 

• Inspect agenda and public reports at least five clear days before the date of 
the meeting. 

• Inspect minutes of the Council and all Committees and Sub-Committees 
and written statements of decisions taken by the Cabinet or individual 
Cabinet Members for up to six years following a meeting. 

• Inspect background papers used in the preparation of public reports for a 
period of up to four years from the date of the meeting.  (A list of the 
background papers to a report is given at the end of each report).  A 
background paper is a document on which the officer has relied in writing 
the report and which otherwise is not available to the public. 

• Access to a public Register stating the names, addresses and wards of all 
Councillors with details of the membership of the Cabinet, of all 
Committees and Sub-Committees. 

• Have a reasonable number of copies of agenda and reports (relating to 
items to be considered in public) made available to the public attending 
meetings of the Council, Cabinet, Committees and Sub-Committees. 

• Have access to a list specifying those powers on which the Council have 
delegated decision making to their officers identifying the officers 
concerned by title. 

• Copy any of the documents mentioned above to which you have a right of 
access, subject to a reasonable charge (20p per sheet subject to a 
maximum of £5.00 per agenda plus a nominal fee of £1.50, for postage).   

• Access to this summary of your rights as members of the public to attend 
meetings of the Council, Cabinet, Committees and Sub-Committees and to 
inspect and copy documents. 



E:\MODERNGOV\Data\AgendaItemDocs\6\9\5\AI00003596\PUBLINFcabinetcdbus750.doc07/05/04 

 
Please Note: 

Agenda and individual reports can be made 
available in large print or on tape.  Please contact 
the officer named below in advance of the meeting 
who will be pleased to deal with your request. 
The Council Chamber where the meeting will be held is accessible for visitors 
in wheelchairs, for whom toilets are also available. 

A public telephone is available in the reception area. 

Public Transport links 

• Public transport access can be gained to Brockington via the service runs 
approximately every half hour from the ‘Hopper’ bus station at the Tesco 
store in Bewell Street (next to the roundabout junction of Blueschool Street 
/ Victoria Street / Edgar Street). 

• The nearest bus stop to Brockington is located in Old Eign Hill near to its 
junction with Hafod Road.  The return journey can be made from the same 
bus stop. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

If you have any questions about this Agenda, how the Council works or would 
like more information or wish to exercise your rights to access the information 
described above, you may do so either by telephoning Mrs Christine Dyer on 
01432 260222 or by visiting in person during office hours (8.45 a.m. - 5.00 
p.m. Monday - Thursday and 8.45 a.m. - 4.45 p.m. Friday) at the Council 
Offices, Brockington, 35 Hafod Road, Hereford. 



FIREBROCK0.doc 21.05.97 

COUNTY OF HEREFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
 

BROCKINGTON, 35 HAFOD ROAD, HEREFORD. 
 
 
 

FIRE AND EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 
 
 
 

 
In the event of a fire or emergency the alarm bell will ring 
continuously. 

You should vacate the building in an orderly manner through 
the nearest available fire exit. 

You should then proceed to Assembly Point J which is located 
at the southern entrance to the car park.  A check will be 
undertaken to ensure that those recorded as present have 
vacated the building following which further instructions will be 
given. 

Please do not allow any items of clothing, etc. to obstruct any of 
the exits. 

Do not delay your vacation of the building by stopping or 
returning to collect coats or other personal belongings. 





 

 
 Further information on the subject of this report is available from 

Neil Pringle, Chief Executive, on (01432) 260044  

Cabinet13MayLGFA920.doc  

LOCAL GOVERNMENT FINANCE ACT 1992 
NOTIFICATION OF DESIGNATION (NOMINATION) FOR 

2004/05 

PROGRAMME AREA RESPONSIBILITY:  
CORPORATE STRATEGY AND FINANCE 

CABINET  13TH MAY, 2004 
 
Wards Affected 

County-wide 

Purpose 

To determine whether or not to challenge the “designation” of the authority pursuant to 
Section 52D(2)(a) of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 and, if so, to approve the 
Notice to be issued to the First Secretary of State in the form of the attached Appendix 1. 

Key Decision  

This is not a Key Decision. 

Recommendation 

THAT (i) the attached draft Notice to the First Secretary of State 
challenging his proposed budget requirement for the 
financial year 2004/05 and substituting the higher amount 
as determined by Council on 5th March, 2004 be 
approved; and 

 (ii) the Leader of the Council on the advice of the Chief 
Executive and County Treasurer be authorised to make 
detailed amendments to the presentation of the challenge 
following the receipt of any further advice. 

Reasons 

To determine the Council’s response to the proposed designation of the authority under the 
Local Government Finance Act 1992. 

Considerations 

1. At its meeting on 5th March, 2004 the Council established its budget requirement for 
2004/05 at the figure of £175,573,000 resulting in a Band D council tax expenditure 
for the Council of £959.53.   That budget was approved by the Council on 5th March 
without dissent and without any alternative budget proposal being promoted although 
there were a number of abstentions recorded. 

AGENDA ITEM 3

1



2. Cabinet will recall that initial consideration was given to the recommendations of 
Budget Panel at the Cabinet meeting held on 29th January, 2004.  Those initial 
recommendations were then submitted to the Strategic Monitoring Committee and 
formed the basis of the Cabinet’s initial recommendation on the budget proposals for 
2004/05 considered at its meeting on 19th February, 2004.  All those considerations 
centred on a budget requirement for 2004/05 of £176,433,000 which would have 
produced a Band D council tax of £972.45  The Strategic Monitoring Committee 
made the following observations on the revenue budget for 2004/05.  It 

(a) registered its concern over the levels of investment in Social Care (Adults) 
notwithstanding the proposed investment of £1 million and invited Cabinet to 
re-assess the risks of that approach. 

(b) drew attention to the impact of levying council tax at the proposed Band D 
level of £972.50 and the hardship that could be created for some sections of 
the community.   

(c) offered support for the concept of fulfilling the commitment to replenish 
reserves by accumulating the additional revenues raised from second homes 
as detailed in paragraph 14 of the report, whilst noting some concern 
expressed that the sums mentioned might be optimistic. 

3. Cabinet subsequently resolved to recommend to Council at its meeting on 
19th February, 2004 a budget requirement of £176,433,000 generating a Band D 
council tax of £972.45. 

4. Subsequent to the making of that recommendation, the Leader and Deputy Leader of 
the Council and the Chief Executive and County Treasurer were invited to a meeting 
within the Office of the Deputy Prime Minister on Tuesday, 24th February, 2004.  The 
contents of what was a constructive meeting with the Parliamentary Under-Secretary 
of State, Phil Hope, MP, were confirmed in a letter dated 26th February, 2004.  That 
letter was reported in full at a special meeting of Cabinet held on 4th March, 2004 
specifically to consider the correspondence.  Whilst clearly indicating the concern 
which had been expressed by Phil Hope, MP about the extent of the increase 
proposed in Herefordshire, the letter also stated: 

“I also emphasise that we are not pre-judging who would be capped or what our 
capping principles will be.  We will wait to see actual budgets and council tax rises 
before taking decisions.” 

5. Cabinet on 4th March, 2004 decided to make reductions in the budget proposed for 
2004/05 reducing the budget requirement to £175,573,000 and as a consequence 
reducing the Band D council tax from £972.45 (10.4%) to £959.53 (8.9%).   

6. The Leader of the Council subsequently wrote to Phil Hope, MP on 12th March, 2004 
to outline the action taken to address the concerns that had been aired at the 
February meeting and the consequential reductions which the Council had made in 
its budget.  In his response to the Leader of the Council dated 6th April, 2004, 
Phil Hope, MP stated 

“I cannot, of course, give any indication at this stage as to whether Herefordshire 
might be capped at the level of the increase the Council has now set.  As my letter of 
26th February made clear we are not pre-judging which authorities might be capped 
or what our capping principles will be.  We first need to consider the budget 
information we have received from all local authorities.  Decisions on excessiveness 
are likely to be based on a number of principles 

2



….. but no decisions have been taken and we are not pre-judging anything at this 
stage.” 

Designation and Nomination 

7. On 29th April, 2004, the Chief Executive was informed by the Office of the Deputy 
Prime Minister (ODPM) that the First Secretary of State had formed the opinion that 
the amount calculated by the authority as its budget requirement for 2004/05 is 
excessive.  He was further advised that the First Secretary of State had decided to 
designate the authority pursuant to the Local Government Finance Act 1992.  If that 
designation is maintained then it would have the effect of imposing a lower maximum 
budget requirement which would require the authority to make substitute calculations 
for its budget requirement in 2004/05 and lead to the re-billing of council tax payers. 

8. The principles determined for the authority (and all other authorities falling within the 
same category) are that its budget requirement is excessive if 

(a) there is a 6.5% or greater increase in the amount calculated by an authority 
as its budget requirement (less local precepts) for 2004/05 compared to 
2003/04; 

(b) there is a 8.5% or greater increase in the (Band D) basic amount of council 
tax (calculated after excluding a contribution to meeting local precepts) for 
2004/05 compared to 2003/04. 

9. The Council has 21 days beginning with the day of the receipt of the letter to 
challenge the First Secretary of State by notice in writing.  That challenge has to be 
made by 19th May, 2004. 

10. After he has considered the reasons set out in the authority’s challenge and any 
additional information that has been provided, the First Secretary of State will either 

(a) make an Order (which is subject to the approval of the House of Commons) 
and impose a lower budget requirement for 2004/05 which will then require 
the re-billing of council tax payers; or 

(b) he can cancel the designation, in effect withdrawing his proposals to 
designate the Council in 2004/05, and nominate the authority effectively 
reserving to himself powers to limit the budget requirement for 2005/06.  
There are two ways in which he can do that.  He can 

(i) designate the authority for 2005/06, effectively determining the 
maximum budget requirement for that year; or 

(ii) determine a notional amount to be calculated by the authority as its 
budget requirement for 2004/05 against which the reasonableness of 
increases in the following year will be measured. 

11. There is then a further right of challenge to the process of nomination. 

3



The Form of the Challenge 

12. The challenge is by way of Notice as previously explained and if it is to be successful 
will need to be supported by reasons. 

13. Additionally, the Council is required to provide the following documentation. 

(a) Reports and minutes of Council meetings at which the budget and precept 
were considered. 

(b) The County Treasurer’s report under Section 25 of the Local Government Act 
2003. 

(c) The County Treasurer’s report to the Council on its borrowing limits. 

(d) The authority’s most recent Statement of Accounts and the external auditor’s 
opinion. 

(e) The Council’s most recent external auditor’s Annual Letter and any public 
interest reports from its Auditor received post 1st January, 2002. 

(f) The council tax leaflet for 2004/05. 

Conclusion 

14. It is theoretically possible to challenge the First Secretary of State’s decision by way 
of judicial review.  Such challenge would be on the basis that the criteria adopted by 
the Secretary of State for the designation of the authority are unreasonable.  There is 
concern that the criteria adopted by the Secretary of State in relation to unitary 
authorities differ materially from those adopted in relation to non-metropolitan district 
councils, combined fire authorities and police authorities.  In relation to non-
metropolitan district councils, fire authorities and police authorities in addition to the 
budget criteria adopted, the Secretary of State has applied a further test by only 
designating or nominating authorities in circumstances where their equivalent Band D 
council tax for 2004/05 is greater than the family of authorities to which they belong.   

15. Whilst there is some limited justification offered for the different treatment of those 
authorities as opposed to unitary authorities, there may be an argument that 
exclusion of that criteria in relation to unitary authorities is unreasonable.  If that 
criteria was applied then Herefordshire would not be capped because its Band D 
council tax is below that of the average of the unitary authorities. 

16. However, the Regulations which govern capping do enable the Secretary of State to 
apply different criteria to different types of authorities and the prospects for a 
successful judicial review may fall on that point alone.  There is a general reluctance 
on the part of the Courts to interfere with the legitimate role of Government.  This 
course is not, therefore, recommended although further legal advice could be sought 
from Counsel if Cabinet wished to give consideration to such a challenge. 

17. There are, however, sound and reasoned grounds for challenging the designation.  
That is not to say they will be accepted by the Secretary of State but they are soundly 
based.  In particularly, there is a concern that the decision to designate the authority 
at the figure of £253,000 fails to adhere to the principles of Best Value when 
compared with the additional re-billing costs of approximately half that sum.  That 
ought to provide a compelling argument for nomination as opposed to designation.  

4



The costs of re-billing are, of course, an additional expense to the council tax payer.  
Effectively the Council would, therefore, have to find approximately £400,000 in 
budget reduction as opposed to the headline designation figure of £253,000. 

18. A draft Notice setting out the reasons for challenge is annexed.  These will remain 
the principles on which the Council’s challenge will be made.  Authority is sought, 
however, for the Leader of the Council in consultation with the Chief Executive and 
County Treasurer to make further amendments to the presentation of the challenge 
acting on the further advice of the Local Government Association and other sources 
of support.  A copy of the final form of challenge will be made available to the 
Executive and to the annual meeting of Council to be held on 21st May, 2004.   

Alternative Options 

There are three basic options available to the Council 

Alternative Option 1 

To accept the designation and take no further action.  This would involve the re-billing of 
council tax payers once the designation is confirmed by Parliament. 

Alternative Option 2 

To challenge the proposal of the Secretary of State to designate the Council.  This is the 
course which is recommended. 

Alternative Option 3 

To challenge the criteria under which the Council has been designated by way of judicial 
review.  This course is not recommended for the reasons set out in the report. 

Risk Management 

The risks to the Council are twofold. 

(a) There is a financial risk to the Council if it is designated.  The revenue budget was 
carefully drawn on the initial recommendations of the Budget Panel and following 
consultation with the Strategic Monitoring Committee.  The final proposals of the 
Council represented a reduction of approaching £1 million from those 
recommendations.  There were no alternative budget proposals put forward at the 
meeting of Council in March, 2004 and the majority of the observations which have 
been made through the budget process have been to increase the level of spend 
rather than to decrease it.  The Council was already having to face and manage 
expectations from the public and from partner organisations arising from the 
reductions already made and the further reduction of £400,000 would simply 
exacerabate those. 

(b) The second area of risk is the risk to reputation.  The Council is a Good performing 
authority under the Comprehensive Performance Assessment.  Nevertheless, in 
most of the reports of external inspectors the pressure has been on the Council to 
increase levels of spend and unfavourable comparisons have been drawn between 
levels of spend within this Council and other comparable authorities even where the 
authority is spending at or above FSS.  There is therefore a clear continued risk to 
reputation. 

5



Consultees 

None. 

Background Papers 

None. 

6


